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Request for Proposals – Commercial Banking and Credit Card Services 
 
 
Amendment #2 
Submitted Questions with Responses 
July 26, 2024 
 
 
Service Group 1: General Banking 
 

1. Will a pricing sheet be provided by the Authority for use? 
2. NAA Response: Yes, see the latest three statements following p5. 

 
3. Can the Authority please provide three months of analysis statements? 
4. NAA Response: Yes, see the statements following p5. 

 
5. (A.5.1 2b) Out of the $6,000 a quarter how much is cash vs coin deposits? 

NAA Response: The deposits are a high majority cash.  Coin is typically only collected 
through lost and found. 

 
6. (A.6.3.2) Is the authority open to branchless banking alternatives in lieu of using a 

physical branch location? 
NAA Response: Yes 
 

7. Is there a need for a payroll card for those employees who do not utilize direct 
deposit? 
NAA Response: No 
 

8. (A.6.3.2) Will a contract be considered if there is not a local branch location? 
NAA Response: Yes 
 

9. (A.5.1 2-3) Can the Authority share redacted account analysis statements to showcase 
other related services that the Authority may utilize so we can provide a better 
approximation of cost of services? 
NAA Response: No 
 

10. (A.5.1 3) The Authority mentions disbursement files, how are these files being 
transmitted to the bank for AP and payroll (i.e., file upload into the bank portal or via 
SFTP transmission)? 
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NAA Response: The files are being created in the Business Central platform with a 
customized format then uploaded into the bank portal.  Following this process is not 
required as the Authority would prefer the most efficient and accurate method. 

 
11. (A.5.1) Does the Authority leverage any type of Cash concentration structure for the 

seven accounts? 
NAA Response: No, but the Authority would be open to new banking methods. 
 

12. (A.5.1) Can the Authority clarify whether ACH debit items are also being originated? If 
so, how many ACH credit items vs ACH debit items are be originated? 
NAA Response: The Authority does not currently originate any ACH credits. 

 
13. (A.5.1) Can the Authority clarify how intra-bank transfers are being leveraged and how 

frequently these are done? 
NAA Response: They are conducted on an as needed basis monthly. 
 

14. (A.5.1) The Authority mentions leveraging dollar denominated international wires. Can 
the Authority clarify the volume (#) of international wires per month? What country 
are these wire payments going to, and are they being paid to a USD beneficiary 
account? 
NAA Response: The volume is on average five times a year to Canadian and European 
vendors.  Yes, they are paid to a USD beneficiary account. 

 
15.  (A.5.1) Can the Authority clarify how many wire payments are being originated 

monthly? 
NAA Response: On average, two wires are originated monthly. 

 
16. (A.5.1) Can the Authority clarify which three accounts are drafting checks (e.g., Check 

Clearing Account)? How does the Authority manage checks currently? 
NAA Response: Physical checks are currently drafted off of the Check Clearing Account 
and a R&E (capital improvement projects) checking account.  The authority intends to 
reduce check drafting to only the one Check Clearing Account.  Checks are drafted in 
Business Central then printed and mailed on site. 
 

17. (A.5.1) Can the Authority confirm which version of Microsoft Dynamics 365 Business 
Center you are using?  
NAA Response: The current version in use is 24.2. 
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18. Does the Authority own a Remote Deposit scanner?  If so, what it is the brand and 
model? 
NAA Response: Yes, the brand is Digital Check and the model is CheXpress CX30. 
 

19. Are the Capital expenditures of approximately each month up to $10MM processed 
via ACH or check?  If a portion is ACH, are they processed on a single day or staged 
across multiple days in a month? 
NAA Response: The Authority has been transitioning physical check vendors to ACH 
the past six months.  Currently, approximately 80% of capital expenditure payments 
are sent via ACH/EFT with the goal of getting as close to 100% as possible.  Capital 
expenditure payments are processed once a month. 
 

20. Are you able to provide 2-3 months of (pricing-redacted) analysis statements to 
confirm average operating balances, item activity/volumes, and service subscriptions? 
NAA Response: Yes, see the statements following p5. 
 

21. One Page 3, the ACH requirement states capital expenditure disbursements are made 
each month with a range up to $10MM.  Are these ACH payments pre-funded?  If float 
is required/preferred, can the Norfolk Airport Authority share the last three years of 
annual financial statements to underwrite the required credit exposure? 
NAA Response: Capital expenditures are prefunded; no float is required. 

 
Service Group 2: Purchasing Cards 
 

22. Is the Authority currently using a 3rd party expense management system? If so, who is 
the company? 
NAA Response: The Authority is not currently using a 3rd party system. 
 

23. Does the Authority currently use virtual card for any procurement and AP/invoice 
spend? 
NAA Response: The Authority does not use a virtual card. 
 

24. How soon are you wanting to implement a new card program? 
NAA Response: The expected date is the contract start date of November 1, 2024 but 
may be modified by the Authority based on implementation conditions. 
 

25. What is the breakdown of spend between procurement and T&E? 
NAA Response: The approximate split is 10% T&E and 90% procurement. 
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26. What types of purchases would you be using for the procurement card for? 
NAA Response: The procurement card is used for vendor services and products. 
 

27. Is there any seasonality to your card spend? 
NAA Response: No 
 

28. What would your reporting needs be on a monthly basis? 
NAA Response: Credit card reporting should include the following: card user, card 
number, approvals, G/L coding, receipts, etc. 
 

29. Will the Authority be willing to share a vendor file to complete an analysis for spend 
projections purposes?  
NAA Response: No 
 

30. (A.6.4 12-17) Does a standardized payment term policy exist? 
NAA Response: Yes, monthly. 

 
31. (A.5.2) Can the Authority share whether there is currently a rebate on their existing 

card program and what the rebate is? 
NAA Response: The Authority currently received up to 1.25% depending on spend 
level. 
 

32. What is your current billing cycle? 
NAA Response: Monthly 
 

33. Can you provide 2-3 months of statements on the card program?  
NAA Response: No 
 

34. Can you estimate the average ticket size for expenses paid by card? 
NAA Response: $1,000 

 
General Questions 

 
35. What is the estimated go-live date? 

NAA Response: The expected date is the contract start date of November 1, 2024 but 
may be modified by the Authority based on implementation conditions. 
 

36. Is there an option to submit for one service group only? 
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NAA Response: Yes, per A.5 “Although the Authority’s preference is to select a single 
firm, the Authority retains the flexibility to award this RFP to multiple firms if it is in 
the Authority’s best interest.” 

37. (A.6.4) Please provide the Residence form as we were not able to locate it within the
RFP.
NAA Response- This requirement has been excluded from the RFP per Amendment #1.

38. Under section A.6.8 there is reference to a Service Group 2 Institutional Trust and
Custody.  This service group is not listed in Section A. 5 Scope of Services.  Can we
assume that the Institutional Trust and Custody reference is an oversight and not part
of this solicitation?
NAA Response- This requirement has been excluded from the RFP per Amendment #1.

39. (A.6.4 12-17) What payment terms are offered for check, Virtual Card and ACH
payments?
NAA Response: The Authority’s contracted payment terms with vendors typically
ranges from 30-45 days but the current practice is to pay within a week of invoice
receipt after services or delivery is complete.








































































































